
From: Marguerite [mailto:mermeling@myvine.com] 
Sent: Monday, October 20, 2008 5:58 AM
To: Scott McCullough
Subject: Requests for Chapter 7

Scott,

I couldn't figure out how to make an attachment. so it arrives this way. 
10/20/08

Dear Scott, 

Please accept these suggestions and concerns to integrate into Chapter 7.  Thanks for the 
consideration in advance.

Marguerite Ermeling

Page 7-1 P4 4th line: “co-locational” criteria needs to be grammatically correct or given a  
definition. I can’t find it as a word in the dictionary. 

Page 7-2 P7 2nd line: This line reads that you are asking industrial and business 
development to consider “Whenever possible” (optional by their terms?) the retention of 
open space etc. Since these concerns are held important by the community, then it is the 
community’s job to establish and clearly set their importance in text. Recommendation: 
It is important to consider and include retention of open space for a variety of purposes 
including but not limited to wildlife habitat and ecological functions, recreational 
opportunities, and to serve as visual impact mitigation for surrounding areas. 

P7-2 P8 The term ‘sound’ is used here and in several other paragraphs to reference site 
planning and design principles. What and where is the definition of sound?  
Recommendation:  As new areas evolve, development proposals/plans should be for 
compatible industries and businesses, and should employ attractive design principles and 
elements to minimize negative impacts on surrounding properties and neighborhoods.  I 
think that is what was intended? 

P7-3 3rd sentence Santa Fe Industrial Area.  The area north of Lakeview Road may 
alternately develop with more traditional industrial uses. Is this paragraph saying that the 
large warehouses, distributorships and energy plant are non traditional industrial uses?

P7-4 and 7-5 discussion under Location Criteria for Industrial Developments is a 
duplication of P7-14 Policy 2.1

P7-5 2nd P: recommendation to sentence:  The site specific criteria to be substantially 
met and included on site plans or development plans are as follows:



                   Identification and preservation of…
                   On site natural storm water management…
                   Demonstration of available and adequate utilities….. 
                   Compatibility with…
                   Be annexed….
  Question: If a site can’t meet all of the specific criteria (implied by the adverb 
substantially) which ones are ok not be a criteria?  Can they not be annexed? Not have on 
site storm water? Not demonstrate adequate and available utilities, infrastructure etc? Not 
be compatible to existing and future zoning and land use patterns? It seems that a 
community would want the criteria met if it thought it was important enough to have 
criteria in the first place. Can they have 3 out of 5 their choice?

P7-5 last sentence under Farmland clarification recommendation:  Portions of the site 
pose some challenges related to environmental clean-up from the prior use before re-
development occurs.  It is a site well suited for industrial uses, warehouse and 
distribution and Office research. Drop’collaborative park setting’ since this has no 
meaning or definition in this context. Or explain.

P7-6 Airport 1st P 2nd to last sentence:  As this area evolves into a community gateway, 
development proposals are also encouraged to employ ’sound’  site planning and design 
principles to make this area an attractive one. ‘Sound’ = ? vs ‘unsound’ site planning? Is 
unsound site planning possible to accept? Recommendation:  As this area will be a 
community gateway, development proposals/plans should be appropriate and compatible 
industries and businesses, and include attractive design details and landscape elements 
to minimize negative impacts on surrounding properties and neighborhoods.

Page 7-7 2nd sentence I-70 and K-10: Recommendation: Slope; minimal (0-3% with 
some 3-7%and higher.   The proposed area contains roughly 150 acres and lies outside 
of the 100-year flood The adjacent and nearby land uses are rural farms and rural 
residential . It may be possible to develop the site to a limited extent prior to the 
availability of urban services; however, intense development should wait until such time 
that the land is annexed and urban services are able to be provided.  The area will be an 
important future economic development area for the Lawrence/Lecompton communities 
because of its prime location near the I-70 interchange.  As this area will be a gateway to 
both Lawrence and Lecompton communities, development proposals/plans should be 
appropriate and compatible industries and businesses, and include attractive design 
details and landscape elements to minimize negative impact on surrounding properties 
and neighborhoods.  This site is appropriate for warehouse and distribution, work-live 
campus type centers, industrial/business/research parks, and industrial uses.    

Page 7-7 K-10 and Highway 40: Modify last sentence for continuity Recommendation: 
As this area will be a gateway to the city of Lawrence, development proposals/plans 
should be appropriate and compatible industries and businesses, and include attractive 
design details and landscape elements to minimize negative impact on surrounding 
properties and neighborhoods. This site is suited for warehouse and distribution, work-
live campus type centers, industrial/business/research parks, and industrial uses.     



P7-8 2nd P from bottom:  typo: produxes should be produces.

P7-8:  It seems that the discussion on High quality Ag land should be in policy section or 
at least given a title and #.

! Any development site under any land use category at a gateway should include the 
sentence from the Lawrence- New Employment-related Areas: Developments 
occurring at gateways to the community are required to be of high quality design and 
visual character utilizing best management practices for the site planning and design. 
Such developments are intended to promote an integrated and contextual design 
approach that minimizes unnecessary impacts, such as noise, odor, glare, or other 
similar intrusions to the community and surrounding neighborhoods. 

P7-12 Policy 1.1 a: Remove Lawrence Chamber of Commerce as it goes without 
saying at the moment. Recommendation: Actively market developable sites in a 
manner which will stabilize long-term employment patterns. 

P7-12 Policy 1.2 a: add ‘new development’; Establish design guidelines and standards for 
‘new development’, and redevelopment of existing sites and facilities to ensure high 
quality development.

                            b: change first word from encourage to Employ

                            c: change 4th word from techniques to principles

P7-12 Policy 1.3 a: 3rd word appropriates (how is this quantified or defined?). 
                                The sentence stands well without it.

P7-15 Policy 2.4 b: Again the word “appropriate” has no meaning without a 
                                way to determine its value. Recommendation is to drop it or
                                try “versatile”

P7-17 Policy 3.1 a:  add to the sentence: Require industrial, office research and 
warehouse/distribution facilities and redevelopment of existing such sites to have a 
positive impact on neighboring land uses through the use of natural separations, broad 
landscaped yards, and /or other means of buffering including design techniques and 
details, and  mitigated lighting.                         

P7-17 Policy 3.1 d 1 b:  Sound is used here with’ sound traffic engineering principle’s 
and again has no real definition.

P7-18 Policy 3.1 d 4 a: Recommend: Change Encourage to Use creative and extensive 
landscaping elements ,  building design techniques, natural topography and vegetation, 
and mitigated lighting to buffer between differing intensities of land uses.



P7-19 Policy 3.1 d 4 d: Last sentence should be removed as it defeats every thing else 
stated about buffering, positive impact on neighbors, and the concept of creative and 
extensive landscaping encouraged in this chapter.  The quality of the development can 
still squeak by as poor in this town because of the level of minimum building standard 
requirements, no architectural minimum standards and plenty of minimum only builders.  
The statement “Quality of site landscaping shall mirror the quality of the overall 
development” is not appropriate.

P7-19 Policy 3.1 d.5: Lighting:  Please add that all light shall be 100% shielded not 
causing glare to adjacent land or neighborhoods; that no unshielded wall lamps, dusk to 
dawn lights may be used as street, or parking lot lights.  Please encourage those lights 
compatible with “night skies” requirements in other communities. Excess lumens are 
unnecessary and have been ignored by our lighting (or lack of) good lighting policies.  
Many communities and even 
a few of our own industrial businesses and churches have incorporated better lighting in 
recent years.  I commend them and hope we will take this opportunity to elaborate better 
detail and expectations in this chapter for lighting. 

P7-21 Policy4.1: Level of Service: To clarify this sentence:  Recommendation:  Permit 
the expansion of existing or new industrial-related development in areas where the Level 
of Service is compatible with the additional traffic generated by such development.                            
                  

P7-22 Policy 4.4 Pedestrian Accesses (corrected from Access in document) and 
Circulation

a.      Change to include: Provide Pedshed plans for public and 
private development and redevelopment .
































